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PERFORMANCE REVIEW COMPARISON
Assets (in millions)

2013

$62,706,860

2014

$62,497,350

loss

-0.33%

2015

$65,652,726

growth

5.05%

40

2016

$73,525,908

growth

11.99%

20

2017

$78,692,940

growth

7.03%

2018

$87,841,693

growth

11.63%

2019

$92,093,850

growth

4.84%

2020

$98,172,334

growth

6.60%
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$44,091,650

2014

$47,563,235

growth

7.87%

2015

$48,295,439

growth

1.54%

2016

$52,080,020

growth

7.84%

2017

$58,857,579

growth
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growth

7.24%
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$67,745,196
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7.33%
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$62,504,645
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-7.74%
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2014

$55,651,104
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-0.61%
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$58,889,216
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5.82%

2016

$66,224,383

growth

12.46%

2017

$71,643,723

growth

8.18%

2018

$80,107,351

growth

11.81%

2019

$83,885,309

growth

4.72%

2020

$90,040,837

growth

7.34%

2013

$5,173,494

growth

2014

$5,332,689

growth

3.08%

2015

$5,555,099

growth

4.17%

2016

$5,686,408

growth

2.36%

2017

$5,842,175

growth

2.74%

2018

$6,217,440

growth

6.42%

2019

$6,534,954

growth

5.11%

2020

$6,676,372

growth

2.16%
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
Central Murray Credit Union Limited presents the 2020 Annual Report on the operations and performance.
The Credit Union achieved a solid financial result amidst continuing challenging and difficult economic
times. A pre-tax operating profit of $204,998 was recorded resulting in a net profit of $141,418. This amount,
when added to our existing surplus, brings the Total Reserves of the Credit Union to $6,676,372.
The Credit Union again recorded growth in its Balance Sheet, with Total Assets now $98,172,334 being an
increase of 6.60% on the previous year.
We completed the upgrade to our banking platform in August 2020, which will enhance our operations to
members and provide new product opportunities.
Market conditions at the commencement of the financial year continued to be challenging as in past years.
However, the impact of the Covid-19 Coronavirus Pandemic throughout the world has had a drastic impact
across the globe resulting in border closures, industry closures and massive unemployment levels. The
Global economy is in recession and all Governments are endeavoring to stem the level of recession by
implementing significant stimulus packages to resurrect their economies.
In January 2020 we were aware of the Covid-19 virus and the deadly impact it was having on the other
side of the world. Little did we know at that time that the reality we are now experiencing as a direct result
of the virus has changed our normal way of life for a considerable time ahead.
The impact on financial conditions as a direct result of Covid-19 hit in March 2020. Australia went into
lockdown and government stimulus packages were initiated. The Reserve Bank made the unprecedented
move of reducing Official Interest Rates twice during the month by 25 basis points. This followed the
previous October 2019 reduction of 25 basis points reducing the Cash Rate to a new low of 0.25%.
Forced business closures in March 2020, except for essential services (included Banking services),
resulted in massive job losses. Many of these businesses will never be able to re-open. Businesses that
remained opened have had to adjust to the social distancing requirements and operate on reduced staff
levels with employees where possible working from home.
The effects of the Covid-19 virus lockdown throughout Australia and more so Victoria with its extended
lockdown has heightened the transition away from traditional banking channels. Digital access accounts
for 95% of all banking transactions. All banking institutions have been reviewing their operations with many
amending opening hours and some announcing branch closures.
The Credit Union’s Board of Directors and senior management, in response to the changing banking
environment, reviewed its banking operations to adapt to the changing times ahead.
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
After nearly nineteen (19) years of operations the difficult decision was made to close our Cobram office.
The Cobram office was closed on the 16th October 2020.
Low interest rates will remain for some time and will continue to have an impact on our business model and
profitability. The Board of Directors are focussed on cost-control wherever possible and are constantly
looking at areas for increasing non-interest income revenue to ensure stronger future financial results.
We are committed to ensure the financial products available to the Credit Union customers are comparable
to all other financial services providers operating within our community, these products include Loans,
Savings and Access products as well as the latest technology for our members to access their accounts.
Central Murray Credit Union is the only customer owned banking institution where all benefits remain within
our local community. No other banking institution operating within our communities support local clubs,
schools and local events to the equivalent level as the Credit Union. The amount donated and sponsorships
for the 2020 year totaled $26,557.
Central Murray Credit Union Limited continues to comply with all Regulatory Authorities in particular ASIC
(Australian Securities & Investments Commission) and APRA (Australian Prudential Regulatory Authority).
The Credit Union as an ADI (Authorised Deposit-Taking Institution) is required to maintain minimum specific
standards. As shown below the Credit Union maintains levels well in excess of the required minimum
standards.
Liquidity:

Standard Requirement 9%

Central Murray Credit Union actual 32.04%

Capital:

Standard Requirement 8%

Central Murray Credit Union actual 15.16%

The Board of Directors are required and remain focused in maintaining Prudential Compliance in
accordance with the regulatory governing bodies APRA and ASIC. Director responsibility has continually
increased over the years and will continue to do so each year. The introduction of APRA Prudential
Standard APS510 Fit and Proper details the message from the regulators what is expected of senior
members associated with ADI’S (Authorised Deposit-Taking Institutions). APS510 places greater
challenges and expectations upon each director in order to fulfil their role as a director of the Credit Union.
At the time of preparing my Chairman’s report we have seen the RBA reduce official rates to a record new
low by cutting the Cash Rate by 15 basis points to a new record low of 0.10% at its November 2020 meeting.
On behalf of my fellow Directors I would like to thank John and his entire staff. Without dedicated staff we
would not be able to excel in the service levels provided to our customers and owners.
To my fellow Directors I would like to acknowledge my appreciation for their support and dedication during
the past year in overseeing the Credit Unions operations on behalf of all our customers and owners.
In closing, I would like to thank all Central Murray Credit Union customers and owners for their continued
support
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The Directors present their report together with the financial statements of Central Murray Credit Union
Limited (the ‘Credit Union’) for the year ended 30 June 2020 and the auditor’s report thereon.

Directors
The names and details of the Directors of the Credit Union in office during the financial year and until the
date of this report are:
J Gorman
Board Chairperson
Occupation: Solicitor
Director since 1984

F McCallum
Occupation: Bookkeeper
Director since 2010

M O’Dwyer
Board Vice Chairperson
Occupation: Marketing Manager
Director since 2002

L Douglas
Occupation: Office Administrator
Director since 2003

M Forster-Knight
Board Audit Committee Chairperson
Occupation: Business Manager
Director since 2004

J Vagg
Board Risk Committee Chairperson
Occupation: Accountant
Directors since 2017

All Directors were in office from the beginning of the financial year until the date of this report, unless
otherwise indicated. All Directors are considered independent, non-executive directors.

Directors’ meetings
The number of Directors’ meetings (including meetings of committees of Directors) held during the year
and the number of meetings attended by each Director were as follows:
Board of
Directors

Board Audit
Committee

Board Risk
Committee

12

7

12

J Gorman

10

-

-

M O’Dwyer

10

-

-

L Douglas

10

7

10

M Forster-Knight

10

7

12

F McCallum

12

7

11

J Vagg

11

7

11

Number of meetings held
Number of meetings attended:

Company Secretary
Mr John Pattison, the Credit Union’s Chief Executive Officer, was appointed to the position of Company
Secretary in February 1996 and continues to act in this capacity as at and since the end of the financial
year.

Principal activities
The principal activity of the Credit Union is to raise funds from the Credit Union’s members for the purpose
of making loans to members. No significant change in the nature of the activity has occurred during the
year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
Trading results
The operating profit for the financial year before income tax was $204,988 (2019: $459,683). Income tax
expense was $73,551 (2019: $139,262).

Operating and financial review
Net loans and advances for the year have decreased by $5,240,551 to $62,504,645.
Member deposits increased during the year by $6,155,528 to $90,040,837.
Members’ equity during the year has increased by $141,418 to $6,676,372.

Dividends
The Credit Union does not have a permanent share capital and has therefore not paid or declared any
dividends for the financial year.

State of affairs
In the opinion of the Directors there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Credit Union
during the financial year under review other than the impact of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. The
rapid rise of COVID-19 has seen an unprecedented global response by Governments, regulators and
industry sectors. This has included an increased level of restrictions on corporate Australia’s ability to
operate, significant volatility and instability in financial markets and the release of a number of government
stimulus packages to support individuals and businesses as the Australian and global economies face
significant slowdowns and uncertainties.
The Credit Union received a number of COVID-19 related hardship applications from customers regarding
their loan facilities during the 2020 financial year, which has been taken into account in the expected credit
loss provision as at 30 June 2020.

Events subsequent to balance date
During the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report, the Board of Directors
decided to close the branch located in Cobram. Other than this and the ongoing impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this
report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors,
to affect significantly the operations of the Credit Union, the results of those operations, or the state of
affairs of the Credit Union in subsequent financial years.

Likely developments
No material likely developments are foreseen at this time that may affect the Credit Union’s operations.
Further information about likely developments in the operations of the Credit Union and the expected results
of those operations in future financial years has not been included in this report because disclosure of the
information would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Credit Union.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
Environmental regulation
The Credit Union’s operations are not subject to any significant environmental regulations under either
Commonwealth or State legislation. However, the Board believes that the Credit Union has adequate
systems in place for the management of its environmental requirements.

Directors' benefits
During or since the end of the financial year, no Director of the Credit Union has received or become entitled
to receive a benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of remuneration paid or payable
to the Directors as shown in the general purpose financial statements) by reason of a contract entered into
by the Credit Union (or an entity that the Credit Union controlled, or a body corporate that was related to
the Credit Union when the contract was made, or when the Director received, or became entitled to receive,
the benefit) with:

a Director,

a firm of which a Director is a member, or

an entity in which a Director has a substantial financial interest, except for those outlined in Note
23 to the financial statements.

Public Prudential Disclosure
In accordance with the APS 330 Public Disclosure requirements, the Credit Union is to publicly disclose
certain information in respect of:

details on the composition and features of capital and risk weighted assets; and

both qualitative disclosure and quantitative disclosures for Senior Managers and material risktakers.
These disclosures can be viewed on the Credit Union’s website:
http://www.cmcu.com.au/about_cmcu/aps330_public_disclosure_of_prudential_information (under About
Us section).

Indemnification and insurance of Directors and Officers
During the year, a premium was paid in respect of a contract insuring Directors and Officers of the Credit
Union against liability. The Officers of the Credit Union covered by the insurance contract include the
Directors, Executive Officers, Secretary and employees. In accordance with normal commercial practice,
disclosure of the total amount of premium payable under, and the nature of liabilities covered by, the
insurance contract is prohibited by a confidentiality clause in the contract.
No insurance cover has been provided for the benefit of the auditors of the Credit Union.
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
The Lead auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 30 June 2020 has been received and can
be found on page 11 of the financial report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

J Gorman

M O’Dwyer

Chairperson

Vice Chairperson

Dated at Yarrawonga this 16th September 2020
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2020
Note

2020
$

2019
$

Interest revenue
Interest expense

2
2

3,381,087
(1,022,381)

3,741,434
(1,200,738)

Net interest income
Non-interest revenue
Other income

3
4

2,358,706
517,838
-

2,540,696
515,789
(21,318)

2,876,544

3,035,167

(49,717)
(2,621,839)

(651)
(2,574,833)

204,988

459,683

(73,551)

(139,262)

131,437

320,421

-

-

9,981

-

141,418

320,421

Net impairment loss on financial assets
Other expenses

5

Profit from operations before income tax
Income tax expense

6

Profit after tax
Gain/(loss) on the revaluation of land and buildings, net
of tax
Gain/(loss) on the revaluation of equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

The Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income is to be read in conjunction
with the accompanying notes set out on pages 16 to 69.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2020
Member
share
redemption
reserve
$

Retained
profits
$

Year ended 30 June 2019 **
Opening balance at 1 July 2018
Effect of adoption of new
accounting standards
Opening balance at 1 July 2018 Restated
Other comprehensive income for
the period
Total recognised income and
expense for the period
Transfer to member share
redemption reserve
Transfer to lending risk reserve
Closing balance at 30 June 2019
Year ended 30 June 2020
Opening balance at 1 July 2019**
Other comprehensive income for
the period
Total recognised income and
expense for the period
Transfer to member share
redemption reserve
Transfer to lending risk reserve
Closing balance at 30 June 2020

Lending risk
reserve
$

Asset
revaluation
reserve
$

Financial
asset
reserve
$

General
reserve
$

Total
$

4,783,983

46,510

193,799

643,148

550,000

-

6,217,440

(47,981)

-

-

-

-

45,074

(2,907)

4,736,002

46,510

193,799

643,148

550,000

45,074

6,214,533

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

320,421

-

-

-

-

-

320,421

(2,415)
5,054,008

2,415
48,925

193,799

643,148

550,000

45,074

6,534,954

5,054,008

48,925

193,799

643,148

550,000

45,074

6,534,954

-

-

-

-

-

9,981

9,981

131,437

-

-

-

-

9,981

141,418

(2,194)

2,194

-

-

-

-

-

5,183,251

51,119

193,799

643,148

550,000

55,055

6,676,372

** The Credit Union has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 16 Leases.
comparative information has been prepared under AASB 117 Leases

The Statement of Changes in Equity is to be read in conjunction with
the accompanying notes set out on pages 16 to 69.

The
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2020
Note

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables
Loans and advances
Other financial assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Right-of-use assets
Deferred tax assets
Current tax asset
Other assets

8
9
10
12
13
14
19
7
7
15

2020
$

2019**
$

33,010,500
48,315
62,504,645
205,748
1,856,131
99,400
106,726
83,622
11,665
245,582

21,898,664
55,636
67,745,196
192,260
1,883,611
153,877
85,454
79,152

98,172,334

92,093,850

90,040,837
934,662
207,225
110,602
202,636

83,885,309
1,202,515
187,167
114,710
169,195

91,495,962

85,558,896

NET ASSETS

6,676,372

6,534,954

EQUITY
Reserves
Retained profits

1,493,121
5,183,251

1,480,946
5,054,008

TOTAL EQUITY

6,676,372

6,534,954

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Member deposits
Trade and other payables
Employee benefits
Lease liabilities
Income tax payable
Deferred tax liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

16
17
18
19
7
7

** The Credit Union has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 16 Leases.
comparative information has been prepared under AASB 117 Leases

The Statement of Financial Position is to be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes set out on pages 16 to 69.

The
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2020
Note

2020
$

2019 **
$

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest received on loans and advances
Interest paid on member deposits
Dividends received
Interest paid – lease liability
Other non-interest income received
Income tax paid/(refund received)
Payments to employees and suppliers

3,383,123
(1,155,664)
17,465
(8,430)
467,752
(168,158)
(2,687,875)
(151,787)
5,240,551
6,155,528

3,759,560
(1,243,679)
8,292
505,668
(34,910)
(2,376,872)
618,059
(4,629,019)
3,777,958

11,244,292

(233,002)

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets

(45,901)
(32,296)

(105,020)
20,621
(36,564)

Net cash from (used in) investing activities

(78,197)

(120,963)

(54,259)

-

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

11,111,836

(353,965)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July

21,898,664

22,252,629

33,010,500

21,898,664

Net (increase)/decrease in loans and advances
Net increase/(decrease) in deposits

Net cash from (used in) operating activities

20

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of lease liabilities
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June

8

** The Credit Union has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 16 Leases.
comparative information has been prepared under AASB 117 Leases.

The
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
1.

Significant accounting policies

Central Murray Credit Union Limited (the “Credit Union”) is a company domiciled in Australia.
The financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Directors on 16th September 2020.

(a)

Statement of compliance

The Financial Statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board
(“AASB”) and the Corporations Act 2001.
Not-for-profit status
The Credit Union has analysed its purpose, objectives and operating philosophy and determined that it
does not have profit generation as its prime objective.

(b)

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars.
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical costs except that the following
assets and liabilities (if applicable) are stated at their fair value: land and buildings and other financial
assets.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experiences and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates. These accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Credit Union.
Judgements made by management in the application of Australian Accounting Standards that have
significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in
the next year are discussed in note 1(t).

(c)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, deposits at call and other short-term deposits with
Approved Deposit-taking Institutions that can be readily converted into cash. This includes negotiable
certificates of deposits and floating rate note securities (FRNS). Negotiable certificates of deposits and
floating rate note securities are held via the Austraclear system with the Reserve Bank of Australia, to
enable conversion to cash. Cash and cash equivalents are recognised at the gross value of the outstanding
balance.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (CONTINUED)
1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

Receivables due from other financial institutions

Receivables due from other financial institutions are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Such assets are
recognised initially at cost plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, less any expected credit losses / impairment losses.

(e)

Loans and advances

Loans and advances are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Such assets are recognised initially at cost
plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, less any expected credit losses / impairment losses.
Loan origination fees
Loan establishment fees, discounts and other fees that are deemed to be an integral part of the effective
interest rate are initially deferred as part of the loan balance and are brought to account as income over
the expected life of the loan or other relevant period. The amounts brought to account are included as part
of interest revenue.
Transaction costs
Transaction costs are expenses which are direct and incremental to the establishment of the loan. These
costs are initially deferred as part of the loan balance, and are brought to account as a reduction to income
over the expected life of the loan. The amounts brought to account are included as part of interest revenue.
An analysis of the Credit Union’s loan origination fees and associated cost structure indicated that the net
amount of fee revenue required to be deferred is not material, and accordingly no deduction from loans
has been made.

(f)

Provision for impairment / expected credit loses of financial assets

AASB 9’s impairment requirements use forward-looking information to recognise expected credit losses –
the “expected credit loss model” (ECL).
The Credit Union considers a broader range of information when assessing credit risk and measuring
expected credit losses, including past events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts
that affect the expected collectability of the future cash flows of the financial asset. In applying this forwardlooking approach, a distinction is made between:


Financial assets that have not deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition or
that have low credit risk (performing loans) (‘Stage 1’); and
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (CONTINUED)
1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f)

Provision for impairment / expected credit loses of financial assets (continued)


Financial assets that have deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition and
whose credit risk is not low (‘Stage 2’).

‘Stage 3’ would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment (loans in default) at the
reporting date.
Measurement of ECL
The Credit Union applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECLs) for financial
assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.


12-months ECL (Stage 1) - The portion of lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default
events occurring within the next 12 months.



Lifetime ECL – not impaired (Stage 2) - ECL associated with the probability of default events
occurring throughout the life of an instrument.



Lifetime ECL – impaired (Stage 3) - Lifetime ECL, but interest revenue is measured based on the
carrying amount of the instrument net of the associated ECL.

Exposures are assessed on a collective basis in Stage 1, and on individual basis in Stage 2 and Stage 3.
At each reporting date, the Credit Union assesses the credit risk of exposures in comparison to the risk at
initial recognition, to determine the stage that applies to the associated ECL measurement. If the credit risk
of an exposure has increased significantly since initial recognition, the asset will migrate to Stage 2. If no
significant increase in credit risk is observed, the asset will remain in Stage 1. Should an asset become
credit-impaired it will be transferred to Stage 3.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:


significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;



a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;



the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Credit Union on terms that the Credit Union would not
consider otherwise;



it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or



the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The measurement of ECL reflects:


an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes;



the time value of money; and



reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost of effort at the
reporting rate about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments in the ECL
A number of significant judgments are required in applying the accounting requirements for measuring
ECL, which are detailed below:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (CONTINUED)
1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f)

Provision for impairment / expected credit loses of financial assets (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgments in the ECL (continued)
Assumptions used for estimating impairment
In assessing the impairment of financial assets under the expected credit loss model, the Credit Union
defines default as occurring when a loan obligation is past 90 days due. The definition of default largely
aligns with that applied by APRA for regulatory reporting purposes, and the criteria used for internal credit
risk management purposes.
Assessment of significant increase in credit risk
In determining whether the risk of default has increased significantly since recognition, the Credit Union
considers both quantitative and qualitative factors. These include:


When a loan reaches 30 days past due;



Loan with approved hardship or modified terms.

Calculation of expected credit losses
Expected credit losses (ECLs) are calculated using three main parameters i.e. a probability of default (PD),
a loss given default (LGD) and an exposure at default (EAD). These parameters are derived from industry
standards and historical loss models.
For accounting purposes, the 12-months and lifetime PD represent the expected point-in-time probability
of a default over the next 12 months and remaining lifetime of the financial instrument, respectively, based
on conditions existing at the balance sheet date.
The LGD represents expected loss conditional on default, taking into account the mitigating effect of
collateral and its expected value when realised.
The EAD represents the expected exposure at default.
The 12-months ECL is equal to the sum over the next 12-month PD multiplied by LGD and

EAD. Lifetime

ECL is calculated using the sum of PD over the full remaining life multiplied by LGD and EAD.
Incorporation of forward looking information
The Credit Union has taken into consideration several macro-economic factors including unemployment
rate, gross domestic product, housing price index and interest rates. The affects these data points have on
ECL are reviewed regularly.
The Credit Union considers the ECL to represent its best estimate of the possible outcomes and is aligned
with information used by the Credit Union for other purposes, such as strategic planning and budgeting.
Periodically, the Credit Union carries out stress testing of more extreme shocks to calibrate its
determination of other potential scenarios.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f)

Provision for impairment / expected credit loses of financial assets (continued)

Grouping of loans for losses measured on a collective basis
For expected credit loss provisions modelled on a collective basis, a grouping of exposures is performed
on the basis of shared risk characteristics, such that risk exposures within a group are homogenous. The
Credit Union has elected to use the following segments when assessing credit risk for Stage 1 of the ECL
model:

(g)



Mortgage loans – over 80% loan-to-valuation ratio, and no lenders mortgage insurance;



Mortgage loans – under 80% loan-to-valuation ratio or loans with lenders mortgage insurance.



Personal loans – secured and unsecured



Secured by funds



Overdrafts / overdrawn

Other financial assets

AASB 9 requires the Credit Union’s equity investments in other financial assets to be held at fair value.
The Credit Union has elected for these to be held at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). Subsequent movements in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income and never
reclassified to profit or loss. Dividends from these investments continue to be recorded as other income
within the profit or loss, unless the dividend clearly represents return of capital.

(h)

Property, plant and equipment & intangible assets

Land and buildings
Land and buildings are shown at fair value, based on periodic, at least every 3 years, valuations by external
independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation and impairment for buildings.
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Leasehold improvements
Leasehold improvements and plant and equipment under lease are depreciated over the unexpired period
of the lease or the estimated useful life of the assets, whichever is shorter.
Depreciation/amortisation
Depreciation/amortisation is charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and
equipment. The maximum estimated useful lives in the current and comparative periods are as follows:
 Buildings
40 years
 Plant & Equipment
2 to 20 years
 Leasehold improvements
3 to 50 years
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.
Land is not depreciated.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment & intangible assets (continued)

Disposals
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when there is no future
economic benefit to the consolidated entity. Gains and losses between the carrying amount and the
disposal proceeds are taken to profit or loss. Any Asset Revaluation Reserve surplus relating to the item
disposed of is transferred directly to retained profits.
Intangible assets
Items of computer software which are not integral to the computer hardware owned by the Credit Union
are classified as intangible assets.
Computer software is amortised over the expected useful life of the software. The maximum estimated
useful lives in the current and comparative periods are as follows:
 Computer software

(i)

3 years

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date the Credit Union assesses whether there is any indication that individual nonfinancial assets are impaired. Where impairment indicators exist, recoverable amount is determined, and
impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss where the asset's carrying value exceeds its recoverable
amount.

(j)

Employee entitlements

Long term service benefits
The Credit Union’s net obligation in respect of long term service benefits is the amount of future benefits
that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The obligation is
calculated using expected future increases in wage and salary rates including related on-costs and
expected settlement dates, and is discounted using the rates attached to high quality corporate bonds at
the balance date which have maturity dates approximating to the terms of the Credit Union’s obligations.
Short term benefits
Liabilities for employee benefits for wages, salaries and annual leave expected to be taken within 12
months represent present obligations resulting from employees’ services provided to reporting date,
calculated at undiscounted amounts based on remuneration wages and salary rates that the Credit Union
expects to pay as at reporting date including related on-costs, such as, workers compensation insurance
and payroll tax. Annual leave expected to be taken after 12 months is discounted back to present value
using the rates attached to high quality corporate bond rates at balance date.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Member Deposits

Member deposits are held at amortised cost.
Interest payable
Interest on deposits is calculated on the daily balance and posted to the accounts periodically, or on
maturity or redemption of the term deposit. Interest on deposits is brought to account on an accrual basis
in accordance with the interest rate terms and conditions of each deposit and term deposit account as
varied from time to time. The amount of the accrual is shown as part of accounts payable and other
liabilities.

(l)

Accounts payable and other liabilities

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Credit Union prior to the end of
the financial year and which are unpaid. Due to their short-term nature they are measured at amortised
cost and are not discounted. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

(m)

Revenue Recognition

Policy applicable after 1 July 2019
Interest revenue
Interest income arising from financial assets held at amortised cost is recognised using the effective interest
rate method. Fees and transaction costs that are integral to the lending arrangement are recognised in the
profit and loss over the expected life of the instrument in accordance with the effective interest rate method.
The calculation of effective interest rate does not include expected credit loss. Interest income that is
classified as impaired is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost carrying
value, being the gross carrying amount after deducting the impairment loss.
Fee income
Loan, account and transaction fee income relate to fees that are not deemed to be an integral part of the
effective interest rate.
Fee income relating to deposit or loan accounts is either:
o Transaction based and therefore recognised when the performance obligation related to the
transaction is fulfilled, or
o Related to performance obligations carried out over a period of time, therefore recognised on a
systemic basis over the life of the agreement as the services are provided.
Transaction fees and provision of services are defined within product terms and conditions.
Refer to Note 3 for further details of the revenue recognition for fees income.
Commission income
Commission income which includes insurance and financial planning advice is recognised when the
performance obligation is satisfied.
Refer to Note 3 for further details of the revenue recognition for fees income.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m)

Revenue Recognition (continued)

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive income is established.
Income from property
Rental income from leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Policy applicable before 1 July 2019
Prior to the adoption of AASB 15, fee and commission income were recognised when the fees and income
could be reliably measured, and the receipt became highly probable.
Revenue recognition for interest revenue and income from property are not under AASB 15, and as such
were not impacted by the AASB 15 adoption.

(n)

Leases

Policy applicable after 1 July 2019
Credit Union as a lessee
At inception of a contract, the Credit Union assesses whether a lease exists – i.e. whether the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
The Credit Union has elected to separate non-lease components from lease components and has
accounted for payments separately, rather than as a single component.
At the lease commencement, the Credit Union recognises a right-of-use asset and associated lease liability
for the lease term. The lease term includes extension periods where the Credit Union believes it is
reasonably certain that the option will be exercised.
The right-of-use asset using the cost model where cost on initial recognition comprises: the lease liability,
initial direct costs, prepaid lease payments, estimated cost of removal and restoration, less any lease
incentives. The right-of-use is depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis and assessed for
impairment in accordance with the impairment of asset accounting policy.
The lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the
commencement of the lease. The discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, however where this cannot
be readily determined then the Credit Union’s incremental borrowing rate is used. Typically the Credit
Union uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method. The lease liability is re-measured whether there is a lease modification, or change in estimate
of the lease term or index upon which the lease payments are based (e.g. CPI).
Where the lease liability is re-measured, the right-of-use asset is adjusted to reflect the re-measurement.
The Credit Union has elected to apply the exceptions to lease accounting for both short-term leases (i.e.
leases with a term of less than or equal to 12 months) and leases of low-value assets (defined by the Credit
Union as
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n)

Leases

$10,000). Credit Union recognises the payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straightline basis over the lease term.
Intangible assets such as software licences continue to be accounted for under AASB 138 Intangible
Assets, regardless of whether the arrangement would otherwise meet the AASB 16 Leases definition.
Credit Union as a lessor
The lease is classified as either an operating or finance lease at inception date, based on whether
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset have been transferred to the
lessee. If the risks and rewards have been transferred then the lease is classified as a finance lease,
otherwise it is an operating lease.
When the Credit Union has a sub-lease over an asset and is the intermediate lessor then the head lease
and sub-lease are accounted for separately. The classification of the sub-lease is based on the right-ofuse asset which arises from the head lease rather than the useful life of the underlying asset.
If the lease contains lease and non-lease components then the non-lease components are accounted for
in accordance with AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The lease income is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Policy applicable before 1 July 2019
The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
A distinction is made between finance leases, which effectively transfer from the lessor to the lessee
substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of leased assets, and operating leases,
under which the lessor effectively retains substantially all such risks and benefits.
Leases are classified at their inception as either operating or finance leases based on the economic
substance of the agreement so as to reflect the risks and benefits incidental to ownership.
Operating leases
Operating lease payments, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

25
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (CONTINUED)
1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

Income tax

Income tax for the periods presented comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the
Statement of Profit or Loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which
case it is recognised in equity.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the balance date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Deferred tax is provided using the Statement of Financial Position liability method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes.
The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance date.
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefits will be realised.

(p)

Goods and Services Tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax (GST), except where
the amount of the GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In these
circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of accounting of the asset or as part of the
expense.
Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable
from, or payable to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the Statement of Financial Position.
Cashflows are included on the Statement of Cashflows on a gross basis. The GST components of
cashflows from investing and financing activities that are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are
classified as operating cash flows.
As a financial institution, the Credit Union is input taxed on all income except for income from commissions
and some fees. An input taxed supply is not subject to GST collection, and similarly the GST paid on related
or apportioned purchases cannot be recovered. As some income is charged GST, the GST on purchases
is generally recovered on a proportionate basis, using the safe harbour apportionment rate of 18% adopted
per Practical Compliance Guide 2019/15 from 1 July 2019. In addition, certain prescribed purchases are
subject to reduced input tax credits (RITC), of which 75% of the GST paid is recoverable.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q)

Off balance sheet funding

The Credit Union has facilitated the funding of Integris Securitisation Services Pty Ltd (Perpetual Trustees)
securitised loans totalling $534,936 at 30 June 2020 (2019: $579,454) whereby the Credit Union has acted
as an agent to promote and complete loans on their behalf for on-sale to an investment trust. The Credit
Union receives a management fee in relation to each separate loan funded via this method. The Credit
Union bears no risk exposure in respect of these loans.

(r)

Reserves

Member share redemption reserve
The Credit Union has, in accordance with ASIC Compliance Note 2001.84, complied with Section 254K of
the Corporations Act 2001 via the creation of a member share redemption reserve. At the conclusion of
each financial year the Credit Union establishes the number of members that resigned during the financial
year and transfers the equivalent monetary amount to a member share redemption reserve from retained
profits as the law requires that the redemption of the shares be made out of profits. The balance represents
the amount of redeemable preference shares redeemed by the Credit Union since 1 July 1999. The reserve
has a balance of $51,119 as at 30 June 2020 (2019: $48,925).
Lending risk reserve
The Credit Union has a lending risk reserve of $193,799 as at 30 June 2020 (2019: $193,799). This reserve
is calculated at a minimum rate of 0.5% of risk weighted assets.
Asset revaluation reserve
The asset revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation of owner occupied land and buildings. The asset
revaluation reserve as at 30 June 2020 is $643,148 (2019: $643,148).
General reserve
The general reserve represents a carry forward from a prior year equity transaction relating to the Credit
Union. The general reserve as at 30 June 2020 is $550,000 (2019: $550,000).
Financial asset reserve
The financial asset reserve relates to the revaluation of equity investments (other financial assets) classified
as fair value through other comprehensive income. The financial assets reserve as at 30 June 2020 is
$55,055 (2019: $45,074).
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

Fair value measurement

When an asset or liability, financial or non-financial, is measured at fair value for recognition or disclosure
purposes, the fair value is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, and assumes that
the transaction will take place either in the principal market or, in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market.
Fair value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming they act in their economic best interest. For non-financial assets, the fair value
measurement is based on its highest and best use. Valuation techniques are used that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are classified into three levels, using a fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
Fair value measurement hierarchy
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date; Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability. Considerable judgement is required to determine what is significant to fair value and
therefore which category the asset or liability is placed in can be subjective. The fair value of assets and
liabilities classified as level 3 is determined by the use of valuation models. These include discounted cash
flow analysis or the use of observable inputs that require significant adjustments based on unobservable
inputs.

(t)

Accounting estimates and judgements

Management has been involved in the development, selection and disclosure of the Credit Union’s critical
accounting policies and estimates and the application of these policies and estimates. In particular,
information about areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements are described in
the following notes:


Note 1(f) & Note 11 – Impairment of loans and advances with regards to the expected credit loss
modelling and judgments, including:


Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk: An asset moves to Stage 2 when
its credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. In assessing whether the
credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Credit Union takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking information;



Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of expected credit
loss; and
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t)

Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)


Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring expected
credit loss: When expected credit loss is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the basis of shared risk characteristics.






Note 13 - Fair value assumptions used for land and buildings;
Note 12 – Fair value assumptions used for other financial assets; and
Note 1(u) & Note 1(v) – Judgements used in new accounting standards and interpretations.
Note 19 – Estimation of the lease term and determination of the appropriate rate to discount the
lease payments.

Judgement has also been exercised in considering the impacts that the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic
has had, or may have, on the Credit Union based on known information. The consideration extends to the
nature of the products and service offered, customers, staffing and the geographic region in which the
Credit Union operates. The key estimates and judgements associated with COVID-19 are detailed in Note
11 (regarding expected credit loss on loans to members) and Note 13 (regarding fair value of land and
buildings).
Going Concern
The impact of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and its impact on the Credit Union’s operations has
been subject to close consideration in preparing these financial statements. There has been a significant
amount of scenario testing and forecasting undertaken to provide comfort that there is no material
uncertainty in terms of the Credit Union as a “going concern”. The scenario testing undertaken indicates
that key metrics such as Capital Adequacy and Liquidity are able to be maintained at levels above both
statutory requirements and internal benchmarks for the forecasting period.

(u)

New or amended accounting standards adopted

The Credit Union has adopted all of the new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued
by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period.
AASB 16 Leases
General impact of initial application
AASB 16 Leases replaced AASB 117 Leases from 1 July 2019.
AASB 16 introduces new or amended requirement with respect to lease accounting.

It introduces

significant changes to the lessee accounting by removing the distinction between operating and finance
leases and requiring the recognition of a right-of-use account and a lease liability at the lease
commencement for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
In contrast to lessee accounting, the requirements for lessor accounting have remained largely unchanged.
Details of these new requirements are described in Note 1(n), including the recognition exemptions to lease
accounting as a lessee for low-value assets and short-term leases.
The impact of the adoption of AASB 16 on the Credit Union’s financial statements is described below.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u)

New or amended accounting standards adopted (continued)

Financial impact on initial application
When adopting AASB 16, the Credit Union has applied the modified retrospective (cumulative catch -up)
method from 1 July 2019, and therefore the comparative information has not been restated and continues
to be reported under AASB 117 Leases and related Interpretations.
The impact of adoption as at 1 July 2019 on assets and liabilities is detailed below:
Note

Right-of-use assets
Lease liabilities
Net impact

19
19

Original 30 June
2019 balance
(under AASB
117)
-

Change

New 1 July 2019
balance
(under AASB 16)

125,126
125,126
-

125,126
125,126
-

As at 1 July 2019, the Credit Union’s right-of-use asset relates to a leased property in Cobram used by the
Credit Union as a member service centre.
The Credit Union have presented right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities on the face of the statement
of financial position. To support the additional disclosure requirements introduced by AASB 16, the
financial statements have a new dedicated leasing note (refer to Note 19).
The application of AASB 16 has also had an impact on the statement of cash flows, as detailed below:


Short-term lease payments and payments for leases of low-value assets are included as part of
operating activities, under payments to suppliers and employees;



Cash paid for the interest portion of lease liability is included as part of operating activities; and



Cash payments for the principal portion for lease liabilities is included as part of financing activities.

Under AASB 117, all lease payments on operating leases were presented as part of cash flows from
operating activities.
The adoption of AASB 16 did not have an impact on net cash flows.
The following transition methods and practical expedients within AASB 16 were applied in adopting the
standard:


The Credit Union measured the lease liability at the present value of remaining lease payments,
discounted using the Credit Union’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application (1
July 2019). The incremental borrowing applied at 1 July 2019 was 7.56%;



The Credit Union recognised the right-of-use asset at an amount equal to the lease liability;



The Credit Union applied a single discount rate to the portfolio of property leases, as they were
assessed as having reasonably similar characteristics;



The Credit Union elected not to apply the requirements of AASB 16 to leases for which the
assessed lease term is within 12 months of the date of initial application. These are accounted for
the same way as short-term leases; and



The Credit Union used hindsight in determining the lease term, when the contracts contained
extension options.
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(u)

New or amended accounting standards adopted (continued)

In selecting which practical expedients to apply, the Credit Union has focused on reducing the complexity
of implementation.
Reconciliation to previously reported operating lease commitments note
$
Operating lease commitments note from 2019 financial statements (gross)
Less: discounting impact using 1 July 2019 incremental borrowing rate of 7.56%
Operating lease commitments note from 2019 financial statements
(discounted)
Add: impact from inclusion of extension options that the Credit Union is ‘reasonably
certain’ to exercise
Lease liabilities as at 1 July 2019 (under AASB 16)

23,124
(1,748)
21,376
103,750
125,126

Lease liabilities as at 1 July 2019 under AASB 16 is higher than the discounted lease commitments note
under AASB 117, due to AASB 16 requiring the Credit Union to include lease extension terms where the
Credit Union is ‘reasonably certain’ to exercise the option. The AASB 117 disclosure is only based on the
non-cancellable period.
There are ‘reasonably certain’ extension options on the Cobram property lease, which has extended the
assessed lease term significantly under AASB 16. The extended term means an increased lease liability.
Details of the extension option is detailed at Note 19.
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers replaced AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 111 Construction
Contracts and several revenue-related Interpretations.
The new Standard has been applied as at 1 July 2019 (as a not-for-profit entity) using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this method, the cumulative effect of initial application is recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 July 2019 and comparatives are not restated.
In accordance with the transition guidance, AASB 15 has only been applied to contracts that are incomplete
as at 1 July 2019.
AASB 15 requires the identification of discrete performance obligations within a customer contract and an
associated transaction price that is allocated to these obligations. Revenue is recognised upon satisfaction
of these performance obligations, which occur when control of the goods or services is transferred to the
customer.
The adoption of AASB 15 did not materially impact the timing or amount of fee and commission income
from contracts with customers and the related assets and liabilities of the Credit Union, and as such there
was no 1 July 2019 adjustment relating to this standard.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v)

New accounting standards and interpretations not yet mandatory

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30
June 2020 reporting period. The Credit Union’s assessment of the impact of these new standards and
interpretations is set out below. Changes that are not likely to impact the financial report of the Credit Union
have not been reported.
There are no new accounting standards or interpretations expected to have a significant impact on the
Credit Union’s financial report that are issued and not yet applicable.

2.

Interest revenue and interest expenses
2020
$
Interest revenue
Investment securities
Loans and advances

241,599
3,139,488

317,266
3,424,168

3,381,087

3,741,434

1,013,951
8,430

1,200,738
-

1,022,381

1,200,738

73,768
289,781
17,267
38,140

111,727
286,993
28,849
38,537

Other sources of income
Dividends
Bad debts recovered
Other income
Government Grants

17,465
10
31,407
50,000

8,292
41,391
-

Total non-interest revenue

517,838

515,789

Interest expense
Member deposits
Lease liabilities

3.

2019
$

Non-interest revenue
Revenue from contracts with customers
Fees and commissions
 Loan fee income
 Other fee income
 Commissions - insurance
 Commissions - other

Revenue recognition is summarised in the accounting policy at Note 1(m).
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Further details with regards to the revenue from contract with customers under AASB 15 is disclosed below:
Nature and timing of satisfaction of

Revenue recognition under AASB

performance obligations

15

Loan fees and charges includes fees

Loan

for

recognised at the point in time when

Fee income
Loan fees

ongoing

loan

account

management, as well as late
repayment fees and other penalty

fees

and

charges

are

the transaction takes place.

charges. These fees and charges are
charged to the customer’s account as
incurred.
Other fees

The Credit Union provides financial
services to members. Fees for ongoing

Revenue from account service and
servicing fees is recognised over time

account management are charged to
the customer’s account on a monthly

as the services are provided.
Revenue related to transactions is

basis. Transaction-based fees are
charged to the customer’s account

recognised at the point in time when
the transaction takes place.

when the transaction takes place.
Commission income
Insurance

Commission income is generated via
the issuing of 3rd party insurance

Commission income is recognised
when the insurance policy is issued.

policies to members.

Commission income for renewals is

A marketing allowance is also available
to help cover the direct costs of

recognised on receipt as there is
insufficient detail readily available to

projects and/or campaigns.

estimate the most likely amount of
income without a high probability of a
significant reversal in a subsequent
period. The receipt of renewal
commission income is outside the
control of the Credit Union, and is a
key judgement area.
Marketing allowances are recognised
in the year the campaign occurs.

Other

Other commission includes financial

Revenue is recognised at the point in

planning, Integris (off balance sheet
loans) and Western Union international

time when it is received as that is

transactions.

when the service has occurred.
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Government grants
As part of its response to COVID-19, the Australian Government, in March 2020, announced various
stimulus measures to ease the burden experienced by businesses as a result of the economic fallout from
the coronavirus lockdown and social distancing measures.
The ‘Boosting Cash Flow for Employers’ measure provided a tax-free ‘payment’ to eligible businesses with
aggregated annual turnover of less than $50 million if they employed people between 1 January 2020 and
30 June 2020. The scheme works as follows:


Initial cash flow boost – 100% of PAYG withheld for January to June 2020 (maximum of $50,000,
minimum of $10,000); and



Additional cash flow boost – equal to the initial cash flow boost, received over two instalments as
part of the June 2020 Business Activity Statement (BAS) and the September 2020 BAS (i.e. 50%
in each BAS).

As both the ‘initial cash flow boost’ and ‘additional cash flow boost’ are effectively a waiver of the whole, or
part, of the PAYG liability, the amount of the ‘payment’ is recognised as grant income under AASB 120
Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance because these cash flow
boosts are being provided by the Government in return for compliance with conditions relating to the
operating activities of the entity.
The Credit Union received an initial cash flow boost of $50k upon lodgement of its March 2020 BAS. The
Credit Union is expected to receive an additional cash flow boost of $50k over two instalments, being the
June 2020 and September 2020 BAS’s.
2020
$

4.

Other income
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

5.

2019
$

-

(21,318)

Other expenses
Amortisation
 Leasehold improvements
 Intangible assets

6,166
86,773

6,301
101,795

Depreciation
 Buildings
 Plant and equipment
 Right-of-use assets

14,663
52,551
18,400

13,920
49,561
-

5,496

5,914

1,388,470

1,343,911

911,193
15,856

878,883
25,772

Fees and commissions
General and administration
Personnel costs
 Wages and salaries
 Other associated personnel expenses
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5

Other expenses (continued)
2020
$

2019
$

 Contributions to defined contribution superannuation
95,839
6,279
13,779

94,675
19,938
6,093

6,374

28,070

2,621,839

2,574,833

204,988

459,683

Prima facie income tax expense calculated at
effective rate of 27.5% (2019: 27.5%) on net profit

56,371

126,413

Increase/(decrease) in income tax due to:
Imputation credits
Other adjustments from prior year
Non-deductible expenses
Under/(over) provided for in prior years
Income tax expense

(5,296)
31,768
(9,292)
73,551

(2,576)
48,270
792
(33,637)
139,262

41,783
35,275
(3,507)
73,551

118,354
38,005
(17,097)
139,262

plans
 Annual leave expense
 Long service leave expense
Rental on operating leases
Total other expenses

6.

Income tax
Profit before tax

Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense
Adjustment for DTL on ARR
Income tax expense

7.

Recognised deferred tax assets & liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:
Assets
Liabilities
Net
2020
2019
2020
2019
2020
2019
$
$
$
$
$
$
21,455
20,216
21,455
20,216
Loans & advances
Right of use asset
(27,749)
- (27,749)
Other financial assets
- (16,165)
(17,097) (16,165)
(17,097)
Prepayments
- (16,607)
(17,115) (16,607)
(17,115)
Other receivables
(169,864)
(134,983)
(169,864)
(134,983)
Property, plant &equipment (1)
Accrued expenses
7,280
13,767
7,280
13,767
Leases
28,756
28,756
Employee benefits
53,880
51,471
53,880
51,471
83,622
85,454 (202,636) (169,195) (119,014)
(83,741)
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7

Recognised deferred tax assets & liabilities (continued)
1. The Credit Union’s land and buildings includes some property that is exempt from Capital Gains
Tax (‘CGT’). As such, a deferred tax liability in relation to the revaluation has only been
recognised on the property that is subject to CGT.

Income tax payable:
The current tax receivable for the Credit Union of $11,665 (2019: payable $114,710) represents the
amount of income taxes payable in respect of current and prior periods.
2020
$
Income tax payable / (receivable)
(11,665)
Movement in Taxation Provision
Balance at beginning of the year
Current year’s income tax expense on profit before
tax
Income tax paid – current year
Income tax refund/(paid) – prior year
Prior year adjustments
Balance at the end of the year

8.

114,710

48,364

41,783
(168,158)
-

118,354
(37,281)
(48,364)
33,637

(11,665)

114,710

3,094,288
7,200,000

3,191,261
11,500,000

22,716,212
33,010,500

7,207,403
21,898,664

10,294,288
22,216,212

14,691,261
6,707,403

500,000
33,010,500

500,000
21,898,664

11,122,725
500,000
13,487,955
1,498,257
5,500,000
901,563

15,273,093
500,000
2,488,858
2,488,546
1,148,167

33,010,500

21,898,664

30,935
17,380
48,315

37,770
17,866
55,636

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand and at bank
Deposits at call
Term deposits and Negotiable Certificates of
Deposits

Maturity Analysis
No maturity
Remaining maturity not longer than 3 months
Remaining maturity longer than 3 months and less
than 6 months

Credit rating of cash & cash equivalents
Cuscal Limited – rated A-1
ADI’s rated A-1+
ADI’s rated A-1
ADI’s rated A-2
ADI’s rated A-3
Unrated
Cash on hand – N/A

9.

2019
$
114,710

Other receivables
Accrued income
Other
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10.

Loans and advances

Overdrafts
Term loans
Gross loans and advances
Provision for impairment

2020
$
1,044,473
61,542,684
62,587,157
(82,512)

2019
$
1,048,533
66,770,176
67,818,709
(73,513)

Net loans and advances

62,504,645

67,745,196

1,044,473
741,382
2,195,890
9,915,450
48,689,962
62,587,157

1,048,533
856,527
2,150,229
9,968,548
53,794,872
67,818,709

57,053,111
1,940,612
58,993,723

61,733,342
2,060,749
63,794,091

141,513
3,226,791
225,130
62,587,157

3,374
3,780,832
240,412
67,818,709

Maturity Analysis
Overdrafts
Not longer than 3 months
Longer than 3 and not longer than 12 months
Longer than 1 and not longer than 5 years
Longer than 5 years
Security held against loans
Secured by mortgage over residential property
Secured by mortgage over commercial property
Total loans secured by real estate
Secured by funds
Partly Secured by goods mortgage
Wholly secured

It is not practicable to value all collateral as at the balance date due to the variety of assets and condition.
A breakdown of the quality of the residential mortgage security on a portfolio basis is as follows:
Loan to value ratio of 80% or less
Loan to value ratio of more than 80% but mortgage insured
Loan to value ratio of more than 80% not mortgage insured

50,142,719
7,883,342
967,662
58,993,723

50,747,084
10,991,090
2,055,917
63,794,091

2,874,608

4,375,879

Concentration of risk
Significant individual exposures
Individual credit facilities greater than 10% of capital in
aggregate
Geographical concentrations
The Credit Union has an exposure to groupings of individual loans which concentrate risk and create
exposure to the geographical areas of North Eastern Victoria.
-

Victoria
New South Wales
Other

48,590,602
13,296,684
699,871
62,587,157

53,585,528
13,481,188
751,993
67,818,709
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11.

Impairment of loans and advances
2020
$
Total provision comprises of
Expected credit loss allowance
Total provision

82,512
82,512

2019
$
73,513
73,513

The loss allowance for 2020 is calculated and disclosed under the expected credit loss regime as per Note
1(f).
Amounts arising from expected credit loss:
An analysis of the Credit Union’s credit risk exposure per class of financial asset and “stage” without
reflecting the effects of any collateral or other credit enhancements is demonstrated in the following tables.
Unless specifically indicated, for financial assets, the amounts in the table represent gross carrying
amounts.
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11.

Impairment of loans and advances (continued)

Credit risk exposure under expected credit loss
- 2020
Loan category

Stage 1
12 month
ECL
2020
$

Stage 2
Lifetime
ECL
2020
$

Stage 3
Lifetime
ECL
2020
$

Total

2020
$

Mortgages loans – secured by residential property
Not in arrears and up to 30 days
More than 30 days, but less than 90 days
More than 90 days, but less than 180 days
More than 180 days, but less than 270 days
More than 270 days, but less than 365 days
More than 365 days

56,347,937
-

-

-

56,347,937
-

1,804,731
-

-

-

1,804,731
-

3,345,125
1,008,688
62,506,481
(27,094)
62,479,387
N/A

-

44,891
35,785
80,676
(55,418)
25,258
24,461

3,345,125
44,891
1,044,473
62,587,157
(82,512)
62,504,645
24,461

Mortgages loans – secured by commercial property
Not in arrears and up to 30 days
More than 30 days, but less than 90 days
More than 90 days, but less than 180 days
More than 180 days, but less than 270 days
More than 270 days, but less than 365 days
More than 365 days

Personal loans – secured & under secured
Not in arrears and up to 30 days
More than 30 days, but less than 90 days
More than 90 days, but less than 180 days
More than 180 days, but less than 270 days
More than 270 days, but less than 365 days
More than 365 days

Overdrafts
Total carrying amount – gross
Less expected credit loss allowance
Total carrying amount – net
Security analysis -Stage 2 & Stage 3
Estimated collateral – after discount
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11.

Impairment of loans and advances (continued)

Credit risk exposure under expected credit loss
- 2019
Loan category

Stage 1
12 month
ECL
2019
$

Stage 2
Lifetime
ECL
2019
$

Stage 3
Lifetime
ECL
2019
$

Total

2019
$

Mortgages loans – secured by residential property
Not in arrears and up to 30 days
More than 30 days, but less than 90 days
More than 90 days, but less than 180 days
More than 180 days, but less than 270 days
More than 270 days, but less than 365 days
More than 365 days

60,950,147
-

85,965
-

-

61,036,112
-

1,906,344
-

-

-

1,906,344
-

3,746,617
1,017,394
67,620,502
(9,653)
67,610,849
N/A

85,965
(4,298)
81,667
-

40,413
40,690
31,139
112,242
(59,562)
52,680
17,500

3,746,617
40,413
40,690
1,048,533
67,818,709
(73,513)
67,745,196
17,500

Mortgages loans – secured by commercial property
Not in arrears and up to 30 days
More than 30 days, but less than 90 days
More than 90 days, but less than 180 days
More than 180 days, but less than 270 days
More than 270 days, but less than 365 days
More than 365 days

Personal loans – secured & under secured
Not in arrears and up to 30 days
More than 30 days, but less than 90 days
More than 90 days, but less than 180 days
More than 180 days, but less than 270 days
More than 270 days, but less than 365 days
More than 365 days

Overdrafts
Total carrying amount – gross
Less expected credit loss allowance
Total carrying amount – net
Security analysis -Stage 2 & Stage 3
Estimated collateral – after discount
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11.

Impairment of loans and advances (continued)

Reconciliation of allowance for impairment
The reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the allowance for impairment by class of
financial instrument is shown in the table below:
2020:

Movement category
Balance at 1 July per 2019
Transfers between stages
Movement due to increase in loans &
advances
Movement due to change in credit risk
Bad debts written off from provision
Changes in model/risk parameters
Balance at 30 June 2020

Stage 1
12 month
ECL
2020
$
9,653
-

Stage 2
Lifetime
ECL
2020
$
4,298
-

Stage 3
Lifetime
ECL
2020
$
59,562
-

17,441
27,094

(4,298)
-

36,411
(40,555)
55,418

Total

2020
$
73,513
53,852
(4,298)
(40,555)
82,512

2019:

Movement category
Balance at 1 July per AASB 139
Adjustment on initial application of AASB 9
Balance at 1 July per AASB 9
Transfers between stages
Movement due to increase in loans &
advances
Movement due to change in credit risk
Bad debts written off from provision
Changes in model/risk parameters
Balance at 30 June 2019

Stage 1
12 month
ECL
2019
$

Stage 2
Lifetime
ECL
2019
$

9,312
9,312
-

7,436
7,436
-

Stage 3
Lifetime
ECL
2019
$
34,126
31,234
65,360
-

9,587
(9,246)
9,653

(3,138)
4,298

(5,798)
59,562

Total

2019
$
34,126
47,982
82,108
9,587
(8,936)
(9,246)
73,513
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11.

Impairment of loans and advances (continued)

Sensitivity Analysis and Forward-Looking Information
The uncertainty in the current environment due to the Covid-19 pandemic introduced significant estimation
uncertainty in relation to the measurement of the Credit Union’s allowance for expected credit losses which
could result in an understatement or overstatement due to the following factors:


The extent and duration of measures to stop or reduce the speed and spread of the Covid-19
virus;



The extent and duration of the economic downturn, along with the time required for economic
activity to recover; and



The effectiveness and extent of continued government stimulus measures, in particular their
impact on the magnitude of economic downturn and the extent and duration of the recovery.

The Credit Union has prepared a sensitivity analysis over the allowance for expected credit losses taking
into consideration the following individual scenarios across the Credit Union’s loan portfolio. The scenarios,
including its underlying indicators, have been developed using a combination of publicly available data,
internal forecasts and third-party information to form the base case scenario.
Base Case – the scenario was prepared using reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort at balance date. The Credit Union took into consideration COVID-19
hardship loans, loan-to-value ratio on security for loans in hardship, borrower’s capacity to repay and
expected default of borrowers, unemployment rates, and a continuation of government policy to support to
individuals (i.e. JobKeeper and JobSeeker).
Worse than Base case – this scenario considered a deterioration of borrower’s capacity to repay and
expected default of borrowers, a future increase in unemployment rates, and a price shock to the in the
property market compared to the base case.
Better than Base case - this scenario considered an improvement in the borrower’s capacity to repay and
expected default of borrowers, a future decrease in unemployment rates, and an improvement to the
property market compared to the base case.
The results of the sensitivity analysis performed, taking into consideration a probability weighted average
of each different scenario eventuating, showed that the effect was not material compared to the Credit
Union’s base case allowance for expected credit losses. The Credit Union has elected to use the base
case to measure its expected credit loss allowance at 30 June 2020. Given the economic uncertainties
and the judgement applied to factors used in determining the expected default of borrowers in future period,
expected credit losses reported by the Credit Union should be considered as a best estimate within a range
of possibilities. The rapidly evolving consequences of Covid-19 and government, business and consumer
responses could result in adjustments to the allowance within the next financial year.
2020
$
Loans restructured
During the year, some loans that were previously past
due or impaired, have been restructured by the Credit
Union
Loans restructured during the financial year - all
284,470
Balance at the end of the financial year

-

2019
$

31,549
30,419
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12.

Other financial assets
2020
$
Equity investment securities designated as fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) – held
at fair value
 Shares in Cuscal Limited (a)
 Shares in TransAction Solutions Pty Ltd

(a)

171,824
33,924
205,748

2019
$

159,600
32,600
192,260

Cuscal Limited

This company supplies services to the member organisations which are all Credit Unions and Mutual
Banks. In 2019, these investments were classified as available-for-sale and measured at cost. At 1 July
2018, the Credit Union designated its investment in CUSCAL equity securities as at FVOCI, as the Credit
Union considers these investments to be strategic in nature and the shares are only able to be traded within
a market limited to other mutual ADI’s.
Management have used unobservable inputs to assess the fair value of the shares. Management has
determined that the net tangible asset per share (from the latest available financial statement) is a
reasonable approximation of fair value based on the likely value available on a sale.

13.

Property, plant and equipment
Land
At fair value

Buildings on freehold land
At fair value
Accumulated depreciation

Plant and equipment
At cost
Accumulated depreciation

Leasehold improvements
At cost
Accumulated amortisation

Total property, plant and equipment at written down value

1,150,000
1,150,000

1,150,000
1,150,000

582,290
(40,804)
541,486

556,794
(26,141)
530,653

684,603
(539,664)
144,939

838,933
(661,848)
177,085

146,113
(126,407)
19,706

160,618
(134,745)
25,873

1,856,131

1,883,611
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13.

Property, plant & equipment (continued)

(a)

Reconciliations
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment are set out below:
Land
Buildings
Plant and equipment
Leasehold
improvements
$
$
$
$

Total
$

Balance at 1 July 2018
Additions
Revaluations
Disposals
Depreciation
Amortisation

1,150,000
-

544,573
(13,920)
-

157,002
105,020
(35,376)
(49,561)
-

38,736
(6,562)
(6,301)

1,890,311
105,020
(41,938)
(63,481)
(6,301)

Balance at 30 June 2019

1,150,000

530,653

177,085

25,873

1,883,611

Balance at 1 July 2019
Additions
Revaluations
Disposals
Depreciation
Amortisation

1,150,000
-

530,653
25,496
(14,663)
-

177,085
20,405
(52,551)
-

25,873
(6,167)

1,883,611
45,901
(67,214)
(6,167)

Balance at 30 June 2020

1,150,000

541,486

144,939

19,706

1,856,131

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 (CONTINUED)
13.

Property, plant & equipment (continued)

(b)

Valuations

The basis of land and buildings is fair value, being the amounts for which the assets could be exchanged
between willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, based on current prices in an active market for similar
properties in the same location and condition. The freehold land and buildings located at 58 Belmore Street
and 60 Belmore Street, Yarrawonga were independently valued on 18 June 2019 by Roger M Porter, AAPI
(Val) and applied by the Credit Union as at 30 June 2020. This valuation does not include the property
located at Barr Street Tungamah, which was last independently valued in 2010.
The Directors have performed a review of the fair value during the Covid-19 pandemic and do not believe
that there has been a material movement in fair value since the latest valuation in 2020 and 2010 for these
properties. While the Director valuation does not indicate impairment of land and buildings, it does present
estimation uncertainty regarding the valuation of the land and buildings by acknowledging that past cycles
indicate a lag for property markets to react to economic events, and that the extent of any decline in value
is presently uncertain, and may depend on the length of the Covid-19 pandemic. The fair value assessed
may change significantly and unexpectedly over a relatively short period of time (including as a result of
factors that could not reasonably have been aware of as at the date of valuation). Refer to Note 1 (h), Note
1 (s) and Note 28 for further information on fair value measurement.

14.

Intangible assets
2020
$

2019
$

803,948
(704,548)
99,400

793,234
(639,357)
153,877

Computer and software licenses
At cost
Accumulated amortisation

Reconciliations
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each class of intangible assets are set out below:
Computer software and licences
Balance at beginning of the year
Additions
Amortisation
Balance at end of the year

15.

153,877
32,296
(86,773)
99,400

219,108
36,564
(101,795)
153,877

245,581

79,152

Other assets
Prepayments
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16.

Member deposits

Call deposits
Term deposits

Maturity analysis
At call
Not longer than 3 months
Longer than 3 and not longer than 12 months
Longer than 1 and not longer than 5 years

2020
$
49,966,325
40,074,512
90,040,837

2019
$
43,055,951
40,829,358
83,885,309

49,966,325
18,361,502
20,388,611
1,324,399
90,040,837

43,055,951
23,275,957
20,992,664
935,468
83,885,309

Concentration of deposits
Geographical concentrations
The Credit Union operates in the geographic areas of North Eastern Victoria and Southern New
South Wales and member deposits at balance date were principally received from members
employed in these areas.
The geographical segment details are below:
Victoria
New South Wales
Other

67,494,705
21,931,013
615,119
90,040,837

62,323,497
21,114,270
447,542
83,885,309

Significant individual member deposits
As at 30 June 2020 the Credit Union’s deposit portfolio included $nil deposit exposures which
represented 5% or more of total liabilities (2019: $nil).

17.

Trade and other payables
Accrued interest payable
Sundry creditors and accruals

18.

238,007
696,655
934,662

379,720
822,795
1,202,515

92,795
92,279

72,057
86,000

22,151
207,225

29,110
187,167

Employee benefits
Current
Liability for long service leave
Liability for annual leave
Non-current
Liability for long service leave

50,187,909
21,058,389
397,425
71,643,723

47,414
18,551
257
66,224
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19.

Leases

The Credit Union has applied AASB 16 Leases using the modified retrospective (cumulative catch -up)
method from 1 July 2019, and therefore the comparative information has not been restated and continues
to be reported under AASB 117 Leases and related Interpretations.
(a)

Credit Union as a lessee

Nature of the leasing activities
The Credit Union leases a property at Cobram, which is used as a member service centre.
Terms and conditions of leases
The lease was for an initial term of 3 years, and includes extension options (refer to the below section for
further detail).
The lease contains an annual pricing mechanism based on a fixed rate designed to estimate a CPI
movement. There are no non-index (i.e. CPI) related variable lease payments associated with the property
lease.
There are no leases not yet commenced to which the lessee is committed.
Right-of-use assets

At cost
Accumulated depreciation

2020
$
125,126
(18,400)

Balance at end of the year

106,726

Reconciliation of the carrying amount of each class of right-of-use assets is set out below:

Balance at 1 July 2019
Depreciation charge
Additions to right- of-use assets
Reductions in right-of-use assets due to changes in lease liability
Impairment of right-of-use assets
Balance at 30 June 2020

Land and
buildings
$
125,126
(18,400)
106,726

Lease liabilities
2020
$
Current
Not later than 1 year
Non-current
Later than 1 year

17,473
93,129

Total
$
125,126
(18,400)
106,726
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19.

Leases (continued)

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is shown in the table
below:

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Total

2020
$
13,642
94,569
11,840
130,051

The Credit Union does not face a significant liquidity risk with regards to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities
are monitored within the Credit Union’s finance function.
Extension options
The building lease contains extension options which allow the Credit Union to extend the lease term by
beyond the non-cancellable period. Each extension option is for a further three years, and there are a
maximum of three further extensions on the lease.
The Credit Union includes options in the leases to provide flexibility and certainty to the Credit Union
operations and reduce costs of moving premises, and the extension options are at the Credit Union’s
discretion.
At commencement date and each subsequent reporting date, the Credit Union assesses where it is
reasonably certain that the extension options will be exercised.
There are no potential future lease payments not included in the lease liabilities, as the Credit Union has
assessed that the exercise of each option is reasonably certain as a balance date.
Income statement
The amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income relating to
leases where the Credit Union is a lessee are shown below:
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Rental expense relating to variable lease payments
not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
Rental expense relating to short-term leases
Rental expense relating to low-value assets
Income from sub-leasing right-of-use assets
Statement of cash flows
Total cash outflows for leases

8,430
22,954

Exemptions applied
The Credit Union has applied the exemptions relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets,
as described at Note 1(n).
As at 30 June 2020, the Credit Union is committed to nil short-term leases
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19.

Leases (continued)

Key assumptions used in calculations
The calculation of the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are dependent on the following critical
accounting judgements:
o

Assessment of lease term – as discussed above, this considers consideration of extension
options on a lease by lease basis.

o

Determination of the appropriate rate to discount the lease payments – The Credit Union has
used its incremental borrowing rate, as the rate implicit in the leases is not known. The Credit
Union’s assessed incremental borrowing rate as at 1 July 2019 on adoption was 7.56%. This was
determined based on consideration of reference rates for commercial lending, lease term and a
lease specific adjustment considering the ‘secured borrowing’ element of the leases.

Credit Union as a lessor
OPERATING LEASES
Nature of the leasing activities
The Credit Union receives rental income from various tenants who lease a portion of the land and buildings
owned by the Credit Union in Yarrawonga and Tungamah. These leases have been classified as operating
leases for financial reporting purposes.
Terms and conditions of leases
These operating lease contracts contain extension options at the right of the lessee. All contracts contain
market review clauses in the event that the lessee exercises its options to renew. The lessee does not
have an option to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.
Income statement
The amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income relating to
operating leases where the Credit Union is a lessor are shown below:
2020
$
Lease/rental income (excluding variable lease payments not
dependent on an index or rate)
Lease/rental income relating to variable lease payments not dependent
on an index or rate
Total lease/rental income

2019
$

13,564

17,558

5,865

6,392

19,429

23,950
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19.

Leases (continued)
2020
$

2019
$

Direct operating expenses (including repairs & maintenance) arising
that generated rental income during the period

5,138

1,115

Direct operating expenses (including repairs & maintenance) arising
that did not generate rental income during the period
Total direct operating expenses

5,138

1,115

Maturity analysis of lease payments receivable showing the undiscounted lease payments to be received
after reporting date for operating leases:
< 1 year
1 - 2 years
2 - 3 years
3 - 4 years
4 - 5 years
> 5 years
Total undiscounted lease payments receivable

22,527
3,900
3,900
30,327

FINANCE LEASES
Nature of the leasing activities
The Credit Union is not the lessor in any arrangements assessed as a finance lease.

21,985
3,900
3,900
29,785
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20.

Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities
2020
$

(a)

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit after income tax

131,437

320,421

49,717
178,553

651
171,577

-

(47,982)

-

45,074
21,317

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/Decrease in receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets
(Increase)/Decrease in deferred tax asset
(Increase)/Decrease in current tax asset
Increase/(Decrease) in payables and accruals
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial assets
Increase/(Decrease) in income tax payable
Increase/(Decrease) in employee benefits
Increase/(Decrease) in deferred tax liability
Net cash from revenue activities

7,321
(166,429)
1,832
(11,665)
(267,853)
(13,489)
(114,710)
20,058
33,441
(151,787)

14,508
3,859
(5,880)
20,422
(62,171)
66,346
26,031
43,886
618,059

Add/(deduct) non revenue operations
(Increase)/decrease in loans and advances
Increase/(decrease) in deposits

5,240,551
6,155,528

(4,629,019)
3,777,958

11,244,292

(233,002)

Non cash flows in operating surplus/(deficit):
Impairment charge
Depreciation and amortisation
Effect for allowance for impairment losses on
adoption of AASB 9
Effect for fair value adjustment for other financial
assets on adoption of AASB 9
Loss/(gain) on disposal of non-current assets

Cash flow from operating activities
(b)

2019
$

Cash flows presented on a net basis

Cash flows arising from the following activities are presented on a net basis in the Statement of Cash Flows:
(i) member deposits to and withdrawals from deposit accounts;
(ii) borrowings and repayments on loans, advances and other receivables;
(iii) investment securities, including shares in special service providers.
(c)

Bank overdraft facility

As at 30 June 2020, the Credit Union does not have a bank overdraft facility. This is consistent with 2019.
(d)

Special finance line – standby facility

As at 30 June 2020, the Credit Union does not have a standby facility. This is consistent with 2019.
(e)

CUSCAL – Settlement Security Deposit

In the 2017 financial year, CMCU lodged a Settlement Security Deposit (“SSD”) with CUSCAL. The SSD
is a security deposit of $1,730,000 held in a standard term deposit account with CUSCAL.
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20.

Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities (continued)

(e)

CUSCAL – Settlement Security Deposit (continued)

In accordance with the agreement between CUSCAL and the Credit Union, CUSCAL need not repay the
SSD:
a) until CUSCAL have received all money the Credit Union owe them at any time or which CUSCAL
determine the Credit Union will or may owe them in the future; and
b) until CUSCAL are satisfied that they will not be asked to refund any such money (or any part of it)
to a trustee in bankruptcy, a liquidator or any other person; and
c) other than in accordance with the terms applying to each deposit.
Further, the Credit Union irrevocably authorised CUSCAL at any time to apply all or any part of any credit
balance in any other deposits that the Credit Union may have with them at that time by way of set-off or
counterclaim in or towards payment of any liability (whether due now or later and whether actual or
contingent) which the Credit Union may owe to CUSCAL at that time.
The Credit Union has classified the SSD as cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
and Note 8 on the basis of a determination made by the prudential regulator (APRA) that the Settlement
Security Deposit is for the purpose of facilitating or securing settlement obligations, deposits relating to
industry support schemes are to be utilised for a prudential purpose and thus can be included as part of
the Credit Union’s prudential liquidity holding. The Credit Union has therefore included the SSD in its
calculation of MLH disclosed in Note 26 Risk Management Objectives and Policies.
The Credit Union has also treated the SSD in accordance with its accounting policy for cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of interest rate risk and the maturity profile of financial assets in Note 27
Financial Instruments notwithstanding the existence of these specific contractual encumbrances.

21.

Contingent liabilities and credit commitments

In the normal course of business, the Credit Union enters into various types of contracts that give rise to
contingent or future obligations. These contracts generally relate to the financing needs of customers. The
total credit related commitments and the financial guarantees do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements.
The Credit Union uses the same credit policies and assessment criteria in making commitments and
conditional obligations for off-balance sheet risks as it does for on-balance sheet loan assets.
Credit related commitments includes approved but undrawn loans, credit limits and loan redraw facilities.
Security analysis of credit related
commitments
Secured by:
Secured by mortgage over real estate
Secured by funds
Partly secured by goods mortgage
Fully unsecured
Guarantee
Total

Credit related commitments
2020
$
2,159,584
69,789
64,329
220,851
26,475
2,541,028

2019
$
1,327,358
77,337
71,293
148,866
39,565
1,664,419

Financial guarantees
2020
$
10,000
5,100
15,100

2019
$
10,000
15,000
23,636
5,100
53,736
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21.

Contingent liabilities and credit commitments (continued)

Other contingent liabilities
Central Murray Credit Union Limited is a party to the Credit Union Financial Support System (CUFSS).
CUFSS is a voluntary scheme that all credit unions who are affiliated with Cuscal Limited have agreed to
participate in. CUFSS is a company limited by guarantee with each credit union’s guarantee being $100.
As a member of CUFSS, the Credit Union:
 May be required to advance funds of up to 3% (excluding permanent loans) of total assets to
another credit union requiring financial support;
 May be required to advance permanent loans of up to 0.2% of total assets per financial year to
another credit union requiring financial support; and
 Agrees, in conjunction with other members, to fund the operating costs of CUFSS.
Other commitments
The Credit Union has a number of Service Agreements with external parties for the supply of services into
the future.

22.

Outsourcing arrangements

The Credit Union has outsourcing arrangements with the National Australia Bank and Cuscal Limited for
the provision of corporate banking services and facilities, settlement services with bankers for member
cheques and access to the direct entry system.
The Credit Union has outsourcing arrangements with Cuscal Limited for the provision of network
transactions for automatic teller facilities, the provision of debit cards and personal identification numbers
and access to the BPAY scheme and the New Payments Platform.
The Credit Union has outsourcing arrangements with TransAction Solutions Pty Ltd for the provision of
computer data processing services and Cuscal Limited for computer software services, rights to visa cards
and the provision of central banking facilities.
Ultradata Australia provides and maintains the application software (Ultracs) utilised by the Credit Union.
The Credit Union has an outsourcing arrangement with AFS & Associates for the provision of internal audit
services.
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23.

Key management personnel

The following were key management personnel of the Credit Union at any time during the reporting period
and unless otherwise indicated were key management personnel for the entire period.
Non-executive directors
J Gorman
M O’Dwyer
L Douglas
M Forster-Knight
F McCallum
J Vagg
Executive
J Pattison

Chairperson
Vice-Chairperson

Chief Executive Officer

Transactions with key management personnel
In addition to their salaries, the Credit Union also provides banking services and products to key
management personnel as outlined below.
Key Management personnel compensation
The Key Management Personnel compensation included in “personnel costs” (see Note 5) are as follows:
2020
$
Short-term employee benefits
Other long term benefits
Post employment benefits

240,714
2,991
32,347
276,052

2019
$
253,974
2,983
33,299
290,256

Public disclosure of remuneration
In accordance with the APS 330 Public Disclosure requirements, the Credit Union is required to include
both qualitative disclosure and quantitative disclosures for senior managers and material risk-takers in the
Regulatory Disclosure section on its website.
Loans and advances to key management personnel and other related parties
Details regarding the aggregate of loans and advances made, guaranteed or secured by the Credit Union
to Key Management Personnel and their related parties as at balance date are as follows:
Loans and advances to key management personnel
Loans and advances to other related parties

984,108
984,108

1,358,400
1,358,400

All loans to Directors by the Credit Union have been made in the normal course of business and on the
normal commercial terms and conditions. A concessional loan rate facility is available to all staff.
Revolving credit facilities totalling $nil (2019: $nil) were made available to Directors and Key Management
Personnel during the year. The aggregate amount receivable at 30 June 2020 was $29,746 (2019:
$24,337). Key Management Personnel who are not Directors receive a concessional rate of interest on
their facilities. These benefits, where subject to fringe benefits tax, are included in the remuneration above.
All other revolving credit facilities are at normal commercial terms and conditions.
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23.

Key management personnel (continued)

There was $794,370 concessional loan rate facilities funded during 2020 (2019: $155,719), excluding those
disclosed separately as Key Management Personnel loans.
Loans to key management personnel and other related parties (continued)
Loans totalling $377,382 (2019: $144,000) were made to Key Management Personnel and other related
parties during the year. As at 30 June 2020 there was $nil (2019: $nil) of loans approved but not yet funded
in relation to Key Management Personnel.
During the year, Mr M O’Dwyer, Ms L Douglas, Mr J Vagg, Mr M Forster-Knight, Mrs F McCallum, and Mr
J Pattison (2019: Mr M O’Dwyer, Ms L Douglas, Mr J Vagg, Mr M Forster-Knight, Mrs F McCallum, and Mr
J Pattison) repaid $2,290,998 (2019: $1,481,304) of the balances outstanding on their loans and revolving
credit facilities.
The Credit Union’s policy for lending to Key Management Personnel and their related parties is that all
loans are approved on the same terms and conditions as is applied to members of each class of loan.
Interest is payable monthly. All loans are secured by either a registered first mortgage over the borrowers’
residences, or by goods mortgages, over security provided by the borrower.
This note excludes loans and advances through the use of the Integris securitisation program, as outlined
in Note 1(q).
Interest received on the loans to Key Management Personnel and other related parties totalled $53,358
(2019: $71,654). No amounts have been written down or recorded as allowances, as all balances
outstanding are considered fully collectable.
There were no other amounts receivable at 30 June 2020 (2019: nil).
2020
$

2019
$

Deposits from key management personnel and other
related parties as at balance date
Total value term and savings deposits from key
management personnel

88,790

77,148

Total value term and savings deposits from other related
parties

-

-

Total interest paid on deposits to key management
personnel

513

1,901

-

-

Total interest paid on deposits to other related parties

The Credit Union’s policy for receiving deposits from Key Management Personnel is that all transactions
are approved and deposits accepted on the same terms and conditions which applied to members for each
type of deposit.
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23.

Key management personnel (continued)

Other key management personnel transactions with the Credit Union
From time to time the Key Management Personnel of the Credit Union and their related parties may conduct
banking related transactions with the Credit Union. These transactions are on the same terms and
conditions as those entered into by other members.
No members of the Key Management Personnel of the Credit Union, or their related parties, hold positions
in other entities that result in them having control or significant influence over the financial or operating
policies of these entities.
Each Director would hold at least 1 share in the Credit Union.

24.

Concentration of assets and liabilities

The Credit Union has cash and cash equivalents exposures in excess of 10% of member’s equity in regards
to a number of investment institutions. At 30 June 2020, these holdings are in accordance with the
requirements of APS 221 Large Exposures.
One of the entities is Cuscal Limited, a Special Services Provider (SSP). The net investment totalling
$11,294,550 (2019: $15,432,693) represents shares held in Cuscal Limited of $171,825 (2019: $159,600)
and cash and investments with Cuscal Limited of $11,122,725 (2019: $15,273,093).
Other cash investments in excess of 10% of shareholders equity were also placed in APRA regulated
deposit taking institutions at 30 June 2020.
Concentration of loans and advances and member deposits are detailed in Notes 10 and 16 respectively.

25.

Auditor’s remuneration
2020
$
Amounts received or due and receivable by the External
Auditor of Central Murray Credit Union (including GST) for:
audit of the financial statements of the Credit Union
other regulatory assurance services
other services – taxation and other assistance

39,347
19,107
10,461
68,915

2019
$

35,426
17,270
13,288
65,984

Audit and related services were provided by Crowe Albury and taxation services by Findex. The above
amounts exclude out of pocket expenses recovered.
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26.

Risk management objectives and policies

Introduction
The Board of the Credit Union has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk
management framework. The Board has endorsed a policy of compliance and risk management to suit
the risk profile of the Credit Union.
The Credit Union’s risk management focuses on the major areas of market risk, credit risk and
operational risk. Authority flows from the Board to the Board Risk Committee and Board Audit Committee
from there to the Management Risk Committee and from there to Internal Audit which are integral to the
management of risk.
The main elements of risk governance are as follows.
 Board: This is the primary governing body. It approves the level of risk which the Credit Union
is exposed to and the framework for reporting and mitigating those risks.

 Board Risk Committee: Its key role in risk management is the overview of the Credit Union’s
internal control framework and risk management systems.
 Board Audit Committee: Its key role in risk management is to consider and confirm that the
significant risks and controls are to be assessed within the internal audit plan. The Committee
receives the internal audit reports to assess compliance with the controls, and provides
feedback to the Board for their consideration.
 Management Risk Committee: Its key role is to provide independent and objective challenge,
oversight, monitoring and reporting to material risk arising from the Credit Union’s operations.

 Internal Audit: Internal audit has responsibility for implementing the controls testing and
assessment as required by the Board Audit Committee:
Key risk management policies encompassed within the overall risk management framework include:


Market risk management system;



Liquidity risk management system;



Credit risk management system;



Large exposures risk management system;



Operational risk management system;



Business continuity management policy; and



Outsourcing policy.

The Credit Union has undertaken the following strategies to minimise the risks arising from financial
instruments:
(a)

Market risk

The objective of the Credit Union’s market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures in order to optimise risk and return.
Market risk is the risk that changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates or other prices and volatilities
will have an adverse effect on the Credit Union’s financial condition or results. The Credit Union is exposed
only to interest rate risk arising from changes in market interest rates within its own banking book. The
Credit Union is not exposed to currency risk or other significant price risk. The Credit Union does not trade
in the financial instruments it holds on its books.
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26.

Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

The management of market risk is the responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer, who reports directly to
the Board.
(i)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of variability of the fair value or future cash flows arising from financial
instruments due to the changes of interest rates.
Most financial institutions are exposed to interest rate risk within its treasury operations. The Credit Union
does not have a treasury operation and does not trade its financial instruments.
Interest rate risk in the banking book
The Credit Union is exposed to interest rate risk in its banking book due to mismatches between the
repricing dates of assets and liabilities.
The interest rate risk on the banking book is monitored and measured on a regular basis, including via the
quarterly APRA reporting.
In the banking book the most common risk the Credit Union faces arises from fixed rate assets and
liabilities. This exposes the Credit Union to the risk of sensitivity should the interest rate change.
The level of mismatch on the banking book is set out in Note 27 below. The table set out in Note 27 displays
the period that each asset and liability will reprice as at the balance date. This risk is not considered
significant to warrant the use of derivatives to mitigate this risk.
Method of managing risk
The Credit Union manages its interest rate risk by the use of interest rate sensitivity analysis. The details
and assumptions used are set out below.
Interest rate sensitivity
The policy of the Credit Union to manage the risk is to maintain a balanced ‘on book’ strategy by ensuring
that the net interest gap between assets and liabilities (the Gap) is not excessive.
The Gap is measured regularly to identify any large exposures to the interest rate movements and to rectify
the excess through targeted fixed rate interest products available through investment assets, and term
deposit liabilities to rectify the imbalance to within acceptable levels. The policy of the Credit Union is not
to undertake derivatives to match the interest rate risks.
Based on the calculations as at 30 June 2020, the net profit impact for a 2% increase in interest rates would
be $1,249,510 increase in profit (2019: $1,097,780). A decrease of 2% in interest rates would have an
equal but opposite effect.
The Credit Union performs a sensitivity analysis to measure market risk exposures on an annual basis, as
part of the annual budgeting process. The method used in determining the sensitivity was to evaluate the
profit based on the timing of the interest repricing on the banking book of the Credit Union for the next 12
months using a variety of assumptions.
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Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Credit Union will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. It is the policy of the Credit Union that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
to its reputation.
The Credit Union manages liquidity risk by:
 Continuously monitoring actual daily cash flows and longer term forecasted cash flow needs;
 Monitoring the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities;
 Maintaining adequate reserves, and
 Monitoring the prudential ratio daily.
The liquidity strategy requires the holding of surplus funds in liquid assets which meet APRA’s criteria for
classification as eligible Minimum Liquidity Holdings (“MLH”) the availability of appropriate standby lines of
funding; maintenance of reliable sources of funding and daily liquidity projections.
The Credit Union has a contractual arrangement with the Credit Union Financial Support Services (CUFSS)
which can access industry funds to provide support for the Credit Union in times of need. Further details
of the CUFSS arrangements are included at Note 21.
APRA Prudential Standards place specific management and reporting requirements on ADIs in relation to
liquidity risk. The Credit Union uses the MLH basis to calculate liquidity. Under this calculation the Credit
Union is required to maintain at least 9% of total adjusted liabilities in specified eligible assets at all times.
The Credit Union maintains a required minimum liquidity level of at least 13% (2019: 13%) to meet adequate
operational cash flow requirements. The ratio is monitored daily. Should the liquidity ratio fall below this
level, management and the Board are to address the matter and ensure that liquid funds are obtained from
new deposits.
The maturity profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities, based on the contractual repayment
terms are set out in the notes to the financial statements.
The liquidity ratio as at the end of the financial year was:
Minimum Liquidity Holdings
Operational Liquid Assets
Total

2020
25.25%
6.79%
32.04%

2019
22.07%
0.52%
22.59%

In order to ensure compliance with APS 210 Liquidity, the Credit Union has set up an Austraclear Proxy
and Settlement Services agreement with FIIG Securities Limited. This facility ensures that the Credit Union
has the ability to liquidate MLH assets within 48 hours as required by APS 210.
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26.

Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(c)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that members, financial institutions and other counterparties are unable to meet their
obligations to the Credit Union which may result in financial losses. Credit risk arises principally from the
Credit Union’s loan book and investment assets.
Credit risk – loans & advances:

(i)

All loans and facilities are within Australia. The geographic distribution is monitored and analysed, with
details of the concentration detailed in Note 10.
The method of managing credit risk is by way of strict adherence to the credit assessment policies before
the loan is approved and close monitoring of defaults in the repayment of loans thereafter on a weekly
basis. The credit risk management policy has been endorsed by the Board to ensure that loans are only
made to members that are creditworthy and capable of meeting loan repayments.
The Credit Union has established policies over the:


Credit assessment and approval of loans and facilities covering acceptable risk assessment and
security requirements;



Limits of acceptable exposure over the value of individual borrowers, non mortgage secured loans,
commercial lending and concentrations to geographic and industry groups considered at high risk
of default;



Reassessing and review of the credit exposures on loans and facilities;



Debt recovery procedures where appropriate; and



Establishing appropriate provisions to recognise the impairment of loans and facilities.

A regular review of the Credit Union’s compliance with the credit risk management policy and associated
policies and procedures is conducted as part of the internal audit program.
Past due and impaired
A financial asset is past due when the counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.
A past due classification can trigger various actions such as a renegotiation, enforcement of covenants, or
legal proceedings.
For loans where repayments are doubtful, external agencies are engaged to conduct recovery action. The
exposure to losses arise predominately in personal loans and facilities not secured by registered mortgages
over real estate.
Details on the expected credit loss provision used by the Credit Union for loans and advances are set out
in Note 11.
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Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

Bad Debts
Amounts are written off when collection of the loan or advance is considered to be remote. All write offs
are on a case by case basis, taking account of the exposure at the date of the write off.
On secured loans, the write off takes place on ultimate realisation of collateral value, or from claims on any
lenders mortgage insurance.
Collateral securing loans
A sizeable portfolio of the loan book is secured on residential property in Australia. Therefore, the Credit
Union is exposed to risks in the reduction to Loan to Valuation Ratio (LVR) cover should the property market
be subject to a substantial decline.
The risk of losses from the loans undertaken is primarily reduced by the nature and quality of the security
taken.
The Credit Union maintains a general policy to attract residential mortgages which carry an 80% loan to
valuation ratio or less. Note 10 details the nature and extent of the security held against the loan held as
at balance date.
Concentration risk
Concentration risk is a measurement of the Credit Unions’ exposure to an individual borrower or industry.
The Credit Union has in place a large exposure policy limit of 10% of regulatory capital. The Credit Union
can lend above 10% of capital, however APRA must be consulted prior to undertaking the loan or facility.
APRA may impose additional capital requirements on the Credit Union if the aggregate of large exposures
is deemed to be higher than prudentially acceptable.
Details of the Credit Union’s large exposures at balance date are set out in Note 10.
(ii)

Credit risk – liquid investments:

Credit risk is the risk that the other party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge their obligation
resulting in the Credit Union incurring a financial loss.
The risk of losses from the liquid investments undertaken is mitigated by the nature and quality of the
independent rating of the investment bodies and the limits to concentration as approved by APRA from
time to time.
The Credit Union uses the ratings of reputable ratings agencies to assess the credit quality of all investment
exposure, where applicable, using the credit quality assessment scale in APRA prudential guidance AGN
112. The credit quality assessment scale within this standard has been compiled with.
Given the high quality of these investments, the Credit Union does not expect any counterparty to fail to
fulfil its obligations. The exposure values associated with each credit quality investment body are detailed
in Notes 8 and 24.
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26.

Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk – liquid investments (continued)
External Credit Assessment for Institution Investments
The Credit Union uses the ratings of reputable ratings agencies to assess the credit quality of all investment
exposure, where applicable, using the credit quality assessment scale in APRA prudential guidance AGN
112. The credit quality assessment scale within this standard has been compiled with.
The exposure values associated with each credit quality step are detailed in Note 8.
(d)

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss to the Credit Union resulting from deficiencies in processes, personal
technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks.
Operational risks in the Credit Union relate mainly from those risks arising from a number of sources
including legal compliance, business continuity, information technology, outsources services failures, fraud
and employee errors.
The Company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the evidence of financial losses
through implementation of controls, whilst avoiding procedures which inhibit innovation and creativity.
These risks are managed through the implementation of policies and systems to monitor the likelihood of
the events and minimise the impact.
(e)

Regulatory and Compliance risk

Regulatory and Compliance risk is the risk of failing to comply with regulatory requirements.
The Credit Union’s compliance program identifies the key legislative and regulatory obligations that impact
the Credit Union and identifies the measures in place to ensure compliance with them.
(f)

Strategic risk

Strategic risk is the risk to current or prospective earnings and capital, resulting from unexpected or adverse
changes in the business environment with respect to the economy, the political landscape, regulation,
technology, social morals, the actions of competitors and business decisions.
Strategic risk is constantly considered through business strategy, i.e. planning and, where applicable,
monitored via the quarterly risk report with additional commentary on emerging issues included in the
monthly report.
(g)

Capital risk

Capital risk is the risk that there is insufficient capital available to protect against unexpected loss.
The Credit Union’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base and to maintain a balance between profitability
and benefits provided to members by way of better interest rates, lower fees, convenient locations and
superior service.
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Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(g)

Capital risk (continued)

The Credit Union’s capital management objectives are to:


Ensure there is sufficient capital to support the Credit Union’s operational requirements;



Maintain sufficient capital to exceed internal and externally imposed capital requirements; and



Safeguard the Credit Union’s ability to continue as a going concern in all types of market conditions.

The Credit Union is subject to minimum capital requirements imposed by APRA based on the guidelines
developed by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision. The Credit Union reports to APRA under Basel
III capital requirements and uses the standardised approach for credit and operational risk.
APRA requires Authorised Deposit-taking Institutions (“ADIs”) to have a minimum ratio of capital to risk
weighted assets of 8%. In addition, APRA imposes ADI specific minimum capital ratios which may by higher
than these levels.
The Board approved internal capital assessment process requires capital to be well above the regulatory
required levels.
2020
$

2019
$

Capital adequacy calculation
Tier 1 capital
Net tier 1 capital

6,177,425

5,996,708

Tier 2 Capital
Net tier 2 capital

193,799

193,799

6,371,224

6,190,507

37,527,596
4,500,144
42,027,440

37,902,574
4,462,122
42,364,696

15.16%

14.61%

Total Capital

Risk profile
Credit Risk
Operational Risk
Total risk weighted assets
Capital adequacy ratio

The level of capital ratio can be affected by growth in assets relative to growth in capital and by changes in
the mix of financial assets managed by the Credit Union.
To manage the Credit Union’s capital, the Credit Union reviews the ratio monthly and monitors major
movements in the asset levels. Policies have been implemented to require reporting to the Board and
APRA if the capital ratio falls below the internal trigger point of 14%. Further a 3 year budget projection of
the capital levels is prepared annually to address how strategic decisions or trends may impact on the
capital level.
Internal capital adequacy assessment process
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26.

Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(g)

Capital risk (continued)

Internal capital adequacy assessment process
The Credit Union manages its internal capital levels for both current and future activities through the Board
in its capacity as the primary governing body. The capital required for any change in the Credit Union’s
strategic direction, forecasts, or unforeseen circumstances, are assessed by the Board.
Public disclosure of capital
In accordance with the APS 330 Public Disclosure requirements, the Credit Union is required to include
details on the composition and features of capital and risk weighted assets in the Regulatory Disclosure
section on its website.
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27.

Financial instruments

(a)

Interest rate risk

The Credit Union’s exposure to interest rate risks and the effective interest rates of financial assets and financial liabilities, both recognised and unrecognised at the
balance date, are as follows:

Fixed interest rate maturing in:

Financial instruments

Financial assets:
Cash and cash
equivalents
Other receivables
Loans and advances
(gross)
Other investments
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities:
Members deposits
Trade and other
payables
Total financial liabilities

Floating (variable)
interest rate
2020
2019
$’000
$’000

1 year or less
2020
2019
$’000
$’000

Over 1 to
5 years
2020
2019
$’000
$’000

Non-interest
bearing
2020
2019
$’000
$’000

Total carrying
amount as per the
Statement of
Financial Position
2020
2019
$’000
$’000

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
2020
2019
%
%

9,393
-

13,543
-

22,716
-

7,207
-

-

-

902
48

1,149
56

33,011
48

21,899
56

0.98%
N/A

1.78%
N/A

61,349
-

65,098
-

1,239
-

204
-

-

2,517
-

206

192

62,588
206

67,819
192

4.46%
N/A

5.20%
N/A

70,742

78,641

23,955

7,411

-

2,517

1,156

1,397

95,853

89,966

49,925

43,014

38,750

39,894

1,324

935

42

42

90,041

83,885

0.90%

1.62%

49,925

43,014

38,750

39,894

1,324

935

935
977

1,203
1,245

935
90,976

1,203
85,088

N/A

N/A

N/A - not applicable for non-interest bearing financial instruments.
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27.
(b)

Financial instruments (continued)
Maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities

Monetary assets and liabilities have differing maturity profiles depending on the contractual terms, and in the case of loans the repayment amount and frequency. The
table below shows the period in which different monetary assets and liabilities will mature and be eligible for renegotiation or withdrawal. In the case of loans, the
table shows the period over which the principal and future interest will be repaid based on the remaining period to the repayment date assuming contractual repayments
are maintained, and is subject to change in the event repayment conditions are varied. Financial assets and liabilities are at the undiscounted values (including future
interest expected to be earned or paid). Accordingly, these values will not agree to the carrying amounts of the Statement of Financial Position.

Financial
instruments

Financial assets:
Cash and cash
equivalents
Other Receivables
Loans and advances
(gross)
Other investments
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities:
Members deposits
Trade and other
payables
Total financial
liabilities

From 3 to 12
months
2020
2019
$’000
$’000

Within 3 months
2020
2019
$’000
$’000

From 1 to 5
years
2020
2019
$’000
$’000

More than 5
years
2020
2019
$’000
$’000

No maturity
2020
2019
$’000
$’000

Total cash flows
2020
2019
$’000
$’000

Total carrying
amount as per the
Statement of
Financial Position
2020
2019
$’000
$’000

22,237
-

6,719
-

506
-

510
-

-

-

-

-

10,295
17

14,703
18

33,038
17

21,932
18

33,011
48

21,899
56

2,497
24,734

1,729
8,448

4,243
4,749

5,777
6,287

19,468
19,468

22,123
22,123

91,094
91,094

86,628
86,628

206
10,518

192
14,913

117,302
206
150,563

116,257
192
138,399

62,588
206
95,853

67,819
192
89,966

18,525

23,589

20,696

17,025

1,375

972

-

-

49,966

43,056

90,562

84,642

90,041

83,885

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

697

823

697

823

935

1,203

18,525

23,589

20,696

17,025

1,375

972

-

-

50,663

43,879

91,259

85,465

90,976

85,088
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27.

Financial instruments (continued)

(c)

Net fair values

The fair value is required to be disclosed where the financial instruments are not measured at fair value in
the Statement of Financial Position. Disclosure of fair value is not required when the carrying amount is a
reasonable approximation of fair value.
Assets where the fair value is lower that the book value have not been written down in the accounts of the
Credit Union on the basis that they are held to maturity, or in the case of loans, all amounts due are
expected to be recovered in full.
The Credit Union has assessed that at balance date, the carrying amount of all financial instruments
approximates fair value. The description of the valuation techniques and assumptions are detailed below:
Recognised financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents
The carrying amounts approximate fair value because of their short-term to maturity (i.e. less than three
months) or are receivable on demand.
Other receivables
The carrying amount approximates fair value as they are short term in nature.
Loan and advances
The majority of the Credit Union’s loans are variable rate loans. The carrying amount of these loans is
considered to approximate fair value. The net fair value of any non-variable rate loans are estimated using
discounted cash flow analysis, based on current incremental lending rates for similar types of lending
arrangements. The net fair value of impaired loans was calculated by using a method not materially
different from discounting expected cash flows using a rate which includes a premium for the uncertainty
of the flows. The carrying amount of loans at 30 June 2020 approximates net fair value.
Member deposits
The fair value of call deposits and fixed rate deposits repricing within 12 months, is the amount shown in
the Statement of Financial Position. Discounted cash flows were used to calculate the fair value of other
term deposits, based upon the deposit type and the rate applicable to its related period to maturity. The
maximum term for fixed term deposits accepted by the Credit Union is two years.
The Credit Union has assessed its own credit risk in regards to the fair value of deposits, and has assessed
that no material valuation adjustment based on the capital management system utilised by the Credit Union
as outlined in Note 26 (g).
Trade and other payables
The carrying amount approximates fair value as they are short term in nature as outlined in Note 27.
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27.

Financial instruments (continued)

Other financial assets
The Credit Union has estimated the fair value of the equity investments within other financial assets utilising
the net asset of the underlying Companies from the most recent financial statements available.
Hence, the key unobservable input in regards to the fair value is the net assets/share amount. Any changes
in the net assets of the underlying Company would directly impact the net asset/share amount used by the
Credit Union, and impact on the fair value estimate of the other financial assets and the Financial Assets
Reserve within equity.
(d)

Categories of financial instruments

The following information classifies the financial instruments into measurement classes.
2020
$
Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables due from other financial institutions
Other receivables
Member loans and advances (gross)

3,094,288
29,916,212
48,315
62,587,157
95,645,972

3,191,261
18,707,403
55,636
67,818,709
89,773,009

Total financial assets

205,748
205,748
95,851,720

192,260
192,260
89,965,269

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Member deposits
Total financial liabilities

934,662
90,040,837
90,975,499

1,202,515
83,885,309
85,087,824

Financial assets at fair value
comprehensive income (FVOCI)
Other financial assets

28.

2019
$

through

other

Fair value measurement
Fair value hierarchy
Refer to details of the fair value hierarchy at Note 1(s).
2020
Assets measured at fair value
Land and buildings
Other financial assets (at FVOCI)
Total

Level 1
$

2019
Assets measured at fair value
Land and buildings
Other financial assets (at FVOCI)
Total

Level 1
$

Level 3
$

-

Level 2
$
1,691,486
1,691,486

Level 3
$

-

Level 2
$
1,680,653
1,680,653

205,748
205,748

192,260
192,260

Total
$
1,691,486
205,748
1,897,234
Total
$
1,680,653
192,260
1,872,913
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28.

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Credit Union has assessed that, at balance date, the carrying amount of all financial instruments
approximates fair value. Refer to Notes 12 and 27(d).
Assets measured at fair value based categorised as Level 2
Land and buildings have been valued based on similar assets, location and market conditions.
Assets measured at fair value based categorised as Level 3

Movement category
Balance at 1 July per AASB 139
Adjustment on initial application of AASB 9
Balance at 1 July per AASB 9
Revaluation through other comprehensive income
Impairment through profit or loss
Purchases
Sales
Closing balance - at 30 June

29.

Other financial assets (at
FVOCI)
Total
2020
2019
$
$
N/A
130,089
N/A
62,171
192,260
192,260
13,488
205,748
192,260

Corporate information

The Credit Union is a company registered under the Corporations Act 2001.
The address of the registered office is 58 Belmore Street, Yarrawonga Vic 3730.
Head office of the business is located in Yarrawonga Vic 3730.
The nature of the operations and its principal activities are the provision of deposit taking facilities and loan
facilities to members of the Credit Union.
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30.

Subsequent events

Other than the ongoing impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the closure of the branch located in Cobram,
there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any
item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors, to affect
significantly the operations of the Credit Union, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the
Credit Union in subsequent financial years.
The Coronavirus (COVID-19), which is a respiratory illness caused by a new virus, was declared a worldwide pandemic by the World Health Organisation in March 2020. COVID-19, as well as measures to slow
the spread of the virus, have since had an impact on the Australian and local economy.
As at the date of preparation of these financial statements the impact of the Coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic is ongoing and the situation is rapidly changing developing. The speed and recovery of economic
activity is largely dependent on measures imposed by the Australian Government, such as maintaining
social distancing requirements, quarantine, travel restrictions and any economic stimulus that may be
provided.
Given the dynamic and evolving nature of COVID-19, limited recent experience of the economic and
financial impacts of such a pandemic on the preparation of these financial statements, changes to the
estimates and judgements that have been applied in the measurement of assets and liabilities may arise
in the future. Other than adjusting events that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period, the impact of events that arise after the reporting period will be accounted for in future
reporting periods.
Other than the above, there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the
date of this report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of
the Directors, to affect significantly the operations of the Credit Union, the results of those operations, or
the state of affairs of the Credit Union in subsequent financial years.
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DIRECTORS DECLARATION
In the opinion of the Directors of Central Murray Credit Union Limited:1.

2.

the financial statements and notes, set out on pages 6 to 69, are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:
(a)

giving a true and fair view of the Credit Union’s financial position as at 30 June 2020 and of

(b)

its performance as for the year ended on that date; and
complying with the Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Credit Union will be able to pay its debts as and
when they become due and payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

J Gorman

M O’Dwyer

Chairperson

Vice Chairperson

Dated at Yarrawonga this 16th day of September 2020.
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